SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

APH 21 1993 CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By\_\_\_\_\_Chief Deputy Clerk

JIMMY LEE EADDY,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 79,987

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

## ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

### INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

NANCY A. DANIELS PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

DAVID A. DAVIS ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER LEON COUNTY COURTHOUSE FOURTH FLOOR, NORTH 301 SOUTH MONROE STREET TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT FLA. BAR NO. 271543

###

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is a capital case. Jimmy Eaddy is the Appellant. The record on appeal consists of 41 volumes, most of which are skinny. Page references to the record will be indicated by the letter "R" while Transcript references will have the usual "T" preceeding the page number.

-1-

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

An information filed in the Circuit Court for Duval County on March 5, 1990, charged James Eaddy with committing a second degree murder thirteen years earlier, in 1977 (R 3). Almost two months later, an indictment upgraded the homicide to first degree murder and it additionally charged him with one count of robbery with a weapon (R 18-19). He pled not guilty (T 15), and the case proceeded in the normal fashion for matters such as this. In particular, Eaddy filed the following motions with the court:

Motion to Prohibit Instruction on Aggravating factors
5(h) and 5(i) (R 117). Denied (R 188).

Motion to Declare Sections 921.141(5)(h) Fla. Stat.
Unconstitutional (R 166). Denied (R 204).

3. Motion to Dismiss Count I of the Indictment (R 208). Denied (R 225).

Motion to Dismiss Count II(robbery) of the Indictment
(R 213). Granted (R 227).

Eaddy proceeded to trial before the honorable John Cox, and the jury found the defendant guilty of first degree murder (R 248), the robbery charge having been previously dismissed. He proceeded to the penalty phase portion of the trial, and after he presented evidence to mitigate a death sentence, the jury recommended death (R 257).

The court followed that advisory verdict. In aggravation it found that:

1. Eaddy committed the murder during the

-2-

course of a robbery.

2. The murder was committed in an especially heinous, atrocious, or cruel manner.

(R 282-83).

The court found nothing in mitigation (R 285).

This appeal follows.

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

James Eaddy was hitchhiking north around Jacksonville in January 1977 trying to get a ride to South Carolina where he lived. At some point on January 16, Thomas Edmonds and a friend known only as Rob picked him up and took him to Edmonds' house (T 972). They drank some beer, but Eaddy wanted to get home so he left as the two other men were arguing (T 972-73). A short time later, Rob drove by and picked up Eaddy, and the two men traveled north together. They stopped twice for gas, and the defendant started to sign his name to the credit card receipt, but then signed Edmonds' (T 975).<sup>1</sup> Rob eventually dropped Eaddy with some relatives of the defendant and never was heard of again (T 979).

Edmonds had agreed to pick up a neighbor, Dr. Raymond Smith, from the airport in Jacksonville at about 10 p.m. on the evening of January 16, 1977 (T 446). He did not, and when Smith eventually returned home that evening, he discussed the matter with his wife and a friend of Edmonds. After a while, they agreed that the friend should go to Edmonds' apartment to see if anything had happened. She did so, and inside she found Edmonds' bloody body on his bed (T 429). As later determined, he had been hit in the back of the head with a blunt object and stabbed 11 times, with most of the wounds on the left side of

-4-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The court excluded Eaddy's testimony that Rob had told him to sign Edmonds' name (T 975). See Issue V.

the body in the vicinity of the heart (T 611). There were no defensive wounds, and the victim could have been unconscious when stabbed (T 637-38).

The police began their investigation during the course of which they uncovered several facts. About 9:30 on the night of the murder, a neighbor in the adjoining apartment heard a loud rhythmic thumping coming from Edmonds' apartment (T 478). She also heard two men engaging in a loud discussion. They were not angry, just loud (T 493). Also sometime during the evening, she also heard loud, hysterical laughter that suddenly stopped (T 483).

The police found a knife near the bed where Edmonds' body lay, and they recovered one fingerprint (among several lifts taken) from an ashtray. The pockets of Edmonds' pants had been turned out, but a gold chain and a gold ring were not taken (T 652, 583-84). Later, the victim's father received credit card receipts from gas stations in Georgia and South Carolina indicating that someone had used his son's credit card after the murder (T 659-60). The victim's car had also been stolen, and its burned hull was found in South Carolina (T 665). There the case remained until 1990.

In that year, the police, using recent innovations in computer technology, matched the fingerprint found on the ashtray with Eaddy's prints (T 705-16). He was arrested, returned to Duval County, and put in a cell with several other inmates, including one Ismael Lopez (T 855). When questioned by the police, the defendant denied being in Florida in 1977,

-5-

and he remained adamant when confronted with the fingerprint evidence (T 746). Even when the police suggested he may have been drunk or that Eaddy had killed Edmonds in anger when the victim approached him for sex the defendant did not change his story (T 742, 745).

Ismael Lopez was in jail charged with either first or second degree murder (T 853, 872). He said that Eaddy had told him that Edmonds had picked him up while hitchhiking and had taken him to the victim's house where he drank a couple of beers (T 859-60). At some point, the victim had approached the defendant, wanting sex (T 858). Eaddy, apparently angered by the homosexual advances, killed Edmonds (T 859-60).

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

Eaddy presents an unusually large number of issues for this court to review: nine guilt phase questions and six penalty phase issues. Although as might be expected, some are stronger than others, all have merit and this court should grant Eaddy the relief requested in his conclusion.

ISSUE I. During voir dire, the state and counsel for Eaddy asked the prospective jurors about their views on the death penalty. The prosecutor asked only general questions on this subject while Eaddy's lawyer probed the positions each member of the venire had on imposing this punishment. One of them, Mr. Williams said that death was always "sufficient" if the defendant had taken someone else's life regardless of the mitigation. Mr. Lambert, another member of the panel strongly favored the death penalty, the mitigation would have to be "pretty strong" for him to recommend life, and most significantly, it would be very difficult to follow the court's instructions if it differed from what he thought was right. Finally, Mr. Watson, like Mr. Williams, favored the death penalty when someone killed another, and he could not recommend life if that was the law.

Eaddy challenged Williams and Lambert for cause, which the court denied, and he peremptorily excused Mr. Watson. After exhausting his peremptory challenges and asking for more, he told the court, he would have used an additional challenge on Mr. Williams who actually sat as a juror at Eaddy's trial.

-7-

The court should have excused each of the three prospective jurors challenged under state and federal constitutional standards. Each of them gave responses creating a reasonable doubt that they could have rendered an impartial verdict based solely on the evidence presented at trial. Mr. Lambert's responses, though providing a closer question, nevertheless weigh in favor of excusal. A prospective juror should be excused who will guarantee only that he will try to be fair.

ISSUE II. During voir dire the court sustained an objection to the defendant's voir dire that sought to determine if the death penalty should be applied to every homicide case. The court reasoned that Eaddy was "seeking to obtain a commitment from this jury on a premature basis" and should only ask if they could follow the court's instructions. Meaningful questioning of the jury ensures the defendant will receive a fair trial. Detailed questioning on pertinent issues helps achieve that goal because it informs the court and the parties about those who will give the defendant a fair trial.

The scope of voir dire depends on the nature of the case and the issues involved. In this case, where death was a possible sentence, the defendant should have been able to probe the prospective juror's views regarding when that penalty should be imposed. That such was needed is obvious from the responses of the prospective jurors discussed in the previous issue. Even if the answers given would not have supported a cause challenge, they may have given the defendant significant

-8-

insight into the jurors to help him make a prudent selection of whom to peremptorily challenge. Limiting Eaddy to asking them if they could follow the law emasculated the voir dire and prevented him from adequately determining the views of the prospective jurors on imposing the death penalty.

ISSUE III. The state had an insufficient case Eaddy murdered Thomas Edmonds until Ismael Lopez came forward and testified that the defendant had confessed to him that he had stabbed the victim. On cross-examination, Eaddy developed that this witness shared a jail cell with the defendant and was awaiting sentencing on a second degree murder charge. The court prevented him from exposing the facts of Lopez's crime which bore striking similarities to those this informant said Eaddy had told him regarding his killing of Edmonds. The court refused this inquiry because it did not see any similarities between the two offenses.

The court erred because the defense questions would have cast doubt on Lopez's credibility, always a relevant issue. Without Eaddy's inquiry the jury was led to believe that what Lopez told them had no similarity with his case, or rather they would have had no idea this witness may have sung so clearly because the melody was so familiar. The prohibited questions would have cast doubt on the veracity of this witness.

ISSUE IV. This court has held that evidence a defendant has been hypnotized may be admitted at his trial. Eaddy had been hypnotized, yet the court peremptorily refused to let him tell the jury that or what he had recalled as a result.

Refusing to conduct a hearing to determine what procedural prejudice the state may have suffered was <u>per se</u> reversible error. The court compounded that mistake by totally excluding this evidence, a sanction this court has held should be rarely used.

ISSUE V. At trial Eaddy admitted that he had signed Edmonds' name to the credit card receipts which the the state had introduced during its case in chief. He testified that Rob, the person who had been in Edmonds' car when the victim picked up Eaddy, had given him a ride to South Carolina after the defendant had left Edmonds' home. Eaddy, who claimed he had no familiarity with credit cards, started to sign his name but wrote Edmonds' instead. The court refused to let him tell the jury that Rob had told him to sign the victim's name because it was hearsay. Such was not because it explained why the defendant did what he did, what his intent was. As such, his explanation did not fit within the traditional definition of hearsay.

ISSUE VI. The key fact in this case is that the murder occurred in 1977, but Eaddy was not charged with that crime until 1990. By law, he could only have been charged with first degree murder because all of the lesser offenses were barred by the statute of limitations. At the charge conference in his trial, Eaddy, through counsel, waived that barrier and wanted the court to instruct the jury on the lesser offenses. The court refused apparently believing that the defendant could not waive the benefits of the statute. That was error.

-10-

Under state law, a defendant can waive application of the statute of limitations if he does so knowingly, intelligently and voluntarily. Here, at a hearing in the defendant's presence, counsel made the request the court denied.

Moreover, under federal constitutional law, refusing to instruct on the lesser offenses enhanced the risk of an unwarranted conviction for first degree murder. With the jury having only a choice between convicting Eaddy as charged or completely exonerating him of any criminality, the likely result would be for that body to return a guilty verdict. Such a result, however, is constitutionally unacceptable.

The state had charged Eaddy with robbery of Edmonds, but the court dismissed that charge because the statute of limitations barred its prosecution. The state argued Eaddy had to be consistent in using that barrier. If it barred the state from using it to prosecute the robbery it should prevent the court from instructing on lesser offenses. The statute, however, was created for the defendant's benefit, and he should have the freedom to invoke it however he saw fit.

ISSUE VII. Statutes of limitation, as this court has held, provides an "absolute protection against prosecution or conviction" for time barred crimes. In this case, even though the court had dismissed the robbery charge against Eaddy, the state presented evidence of it, argued he had committed that crime, and the court instructed the jury on it. Moreover, the court, in sentencing Eaddy to death found that he had committed the murder during the course of the robbery. Eaddy concedes

-11-

that evidence of the robbery could have been presented as part of the context of the murder. The state could not, if the defendant was to be given the protection this court guaranteed the statute provided, have argued it to the jury. Nor could the court have instructed that body on it or used it to justify a death sentence.

The First District Court of Appeal has, however, ruled just the opposite because statutes of limitation have "no effect upon the question of whether such crime was committed" and such statutes affect only the right to relief and not the penalty. The court's rationale fails because the statute precludes even the prosecution for the crime, the only legal way to establish the existence of the offense. Second, the First District relied on civil cases for the latter justification. In a civil context, contracting parties look forward to the execution of their agreement not its breach. Thus, they have no particular interest in claiming a statute of limitation as a defense since it arises only when a party seeks to avoid the terms of the contract.

The relationship between the defendant and the prosecutor is anything but a contractual one. There is, therefore, no reason to rely on the civil rationale. In a criminal context, the defendant has a vested right to invoke the statute of limitations at least when the charged crime becomes time barred.

ISSUE VIII. The previous issue assumes the state had sufficient evidence Eaddy had robbed Edmonds to charge him with

-12-

that crime. This issue disputes that presumption. The evidence shows only that Eaddy took some items from the victim (and left some obviously valuable jewelry) and that the victim was murdered. The state never presented the required causal connection that the taking occurred during the murder to convert a theft into a robbery. A mere temporal proximity between the taking and a murder does not make the former crime into a robbery.

In this case, the circumstantial evidence, viewed in the light most favorable to the state, proved only that after Eaddy killed Edmonds he stole his credit cards and car. That was not part of the murder, and the required causal connection between the murder and subsequent theft is missing.

ISSUE IX. During Eaddy's closing argument, the court refused to let the defendant tell the jury that the state had provided no motive why he had killed Edmonds. On the other hand, it allowed the state to say Eaddy had fabricated his story and lied to the jury. The court erred in both rulings because it precluded the defendant from arguing the state's failure to present evidence concerning a legitimate trial issue, and the state's argument injected the opinion of the prosecutor about Eaddy's guilt and denigrated his defense.

ISSUE X. In sentencing Eaddy to death, the court found that he had killed Edmonds in an especially heinous, atrocious, or cruel manner. Of course, stabbings often qualify as such, but in this case two facts prevent its application. First, and most important, Edmonds may have been unconscious when stabbed.

-13-

He could have been unaware of the attack on him. Second, this conclusion finds support from the lack of any defensive wounds on his body. Thus, while a stabbing may indicate physical torture, the lack of the victim's awareness of his impending death indicates a lack of mental torture. In order for this aggravating factor to apply the murder must have both of these qualities. The victim must have physically and mentally suffered far beyond that found in the norm of capital murders.

ISSUE XI. The court instructed the jury on the aggravating factor that the murder was committed in a cold, calculated, and premeditated manner without any moral or legal justification. In sentencing Eaddy to death, it did not, however, justify this punishment for that reason. It did not for the good reason that the murder occurred during, as the court put it, a "killing frenzy." This aggravating factor does not apply for murders committed in such manner. Instead, killings which show careful planning or prearranged designs to kill qualify for this aggravating factor. Here, the state presented insufficient evidence it applied, and the court erred in instructing the jury on it.

ISSUE XII. Compounding the court's error, the instruction on the cold, calculating, and premeditated aggravating factor merely tracked the statutory language, and was woefully short of adequately informing the jury of the limits this court has placed on it. It was not told, for example, that the defendant needed to have a heightened premeditation. Nor was it informed that whatever level of intent Eaddy may have had to rob Edmonds

-14-

was irrelevant in determining if he had the requisite desire to kill him in a cold, calculated manner. It mentioned nothing about a careful plan or pre-arranged designed this court has also required. Without such limiting and clarifying guidance, the jury was led by the state into believing the robbery was evidence of a calculating mind bent on committing murder. If the jury's recommendation must be given "great weight" as this court has held and the United States Supreme Court has recognized, the jury must be as fully apprised of penalty phase law as the sentencing court. The jury in this case had only the bare outlines of the law on this aggravating factor, which was error.

ISSUE XIII. The murder occurred in 1977, two years before the legislature added the cold, calculated, and premeditated aggravating factor to the capital sentencing statute. This court, in earlier cases, has held that it can be applied retroactively, and that is what happened here. Under state or federal constitutional law those earlier decisions should be abandoned. The change in the law attached legal consequences to the crime before it took effect, and it detrimentally affected Eaddy.

Additionally, Article X, section 9 of the Florida Constitution explicitly prohibits changes in the law from affecting the prosecution or punishment for any crime previously committed. Applying the cold, calculated, and premeditated aggravating factor as was done here violates to clear and plain language of this section of our state's

-15-

fundamental law. The court erred in instructing the jury on this aggravating factor.

ISSUE XIV. Under a proportionality review, Eaddy does not deserve a death sentence. Except for the murder, during his adult life he has had no convictions more serious than drunkenness. Additionally, he had a harsh youth that led to his alcoholism. He managed to recover from that addiction. The universal testimony was that he was a loving father to his son and step-son and a well respected neighbor and friend that willingly helped those about him recover from the devastation wreaked by Hurricane Hugo.

The only thing arguably elevating this murder beyond the norm of capital felonies was the manner of death: multiple stabbings. That single factor, however, does not make this a death case in light of any other significant aggravation and the abundance of mitigation presented.

ISSUE XV. The court found nothing to mitigate a death sentence. It could have and should have found more because the defendant presented an abundance of mitigating evidence at the sentencing portion of his trial.

-16-

#### ARGUMENT

### ISSUE I

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