FILE SID J. WHITE

JUL 26 1993

### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JIMMY LEE EADDY,

Appellant,

v.

Case No.: 79,987

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

# ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

# ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

GYPSY BAILEY ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR #0797200

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904)488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

###

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

Let the record show that no hands were raised in response to that question.

(T 350-51).

Issue II

During voir dire, the following dialogue took place:

[Defense counsel]: Let me ask you, if I could just go one by one on this, Mr. Black, do you have any strongly held views about the death penalty one way or the other?

[Black]: No.

[Defense counsel]: You don't have any ideas about it one way or the other?

Okay. Have you ever -- you've never -- have you ever actively joined any group that advocates the use of the death penalty?

[Black]: No.

[Defense counsel]: Okay. Have you recently discussed the death penalty with friends or anything?

[Black]: No.

[Defense counsel]: Okay. Do you feel that there are any crimes which should automatically get the death penalty?

[Black]: No.

[Defense counsel]: No. Okay. In this case, will you be able to weigh the mitigating [and] aggravating circumstances?

[Black]: Explain that.

[Defense counsel]: If His Honor tells you at the end that there are certain aggravating and mitigating circumstances, if it gets to а sentencing phase, and -- and the aggravating [and] mitigating circumstances, will you be able to follow the law and weigh the aggravation and mitigation?

[Black]: Yes.

[Defense counsel]: Okay. When we talk about if you were to sit on a jury that recommends death penalties, does that mean to you that Mr. Eaddy would die or what would that mean to you?

[Mr. Black]: Yes.

[Prosecutor]: I am going to object, Your Honor, that is not a relevant question.

[Court]: The objection is sustained.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, if I may be heard on that? I am trying to find out what weight they would --

[Court]: Don't argue from out there, just come up to the bench if you will, please, ma'am.

(Sidebar discussion with court reporter present.)

[Court]: First this is a large room and the voices get lost in here.

Read the question back to me, please.

(The question was read back by the court reporter.)

[Court]: I think that's a highly improper question.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, I am trying to find out -- I think in the State's voir dire, the prosecutor indicated that their recommendation was only given great weight. And I think it's important for them to find out how they feel, what their opinions and their views are on the death penalty and how they feel what kind of weight the Court would accord their recommendation.

[Court]: Are you talking about the sentencing hearing?

[Defense counsel]: Yes, sir.

[Court]: I still sustain the objection. I don't believe that's a proper question to ask.

[Defense counsel]: What their beliefs are about the death penalty?

[Court]: No, you didn't ask about what the[ir] beliefs are about the death penalty. You asked what would happen --

[Defense counsel]: I am asking --

[Court]: What do you believe would happen to him.

[Defense counsel]: Right, which I think is important because they may think nothing would happen to him because there is so much publicity about the fact that people stay on death row a long time or warrants are not signed.

[Court]: I will sustain the objection to that question. You can rephrase your question if you wish.

(Thereupon, the following proceedings were held in open court in the presence of the jury:)

[Court]: Proceed counsel.

[Defense counsel]: Thank you, Your Honor.

What kind of weight do you feel a recommendation of death would be given by -- what kind of -- what kind of weight do you think that would be given --

[Prosecutor]: Objection, Your Honor, that's an improper question.

[Court]: The objection is sustained.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, the --

[Court]: What kind of weight by whom, Counselor?

[Defense counsel]: Well, I will ask him.

What kind of weight do you think the Court would give to that recommendation?

[Prosecutor]: Objection, Your Honor, again that's an improper question.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, what kind of weight the Court would give is not improper. That State Attorney asked do you understand this is the weight that will be given. I am just merely asking them what their understanding is.

[Court]: Do any of you have any opinion on that basis as to what weight the Court should give a recommendation by a jury?

[Mr. Black]: It's up to you.

[Venire]: No.

[Court]: Anybody have an opinion on that?

[Venire]: No.

[Court]: All right. Proceed, Counsel.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, one of the jurors did answer that it was up to you what weight would be given to a jury recommendation, which is not the status of the law. And I would ask for a curative instruction on that.

[Court]: I'll give the jury my instructions at the appropriate time, Counsel. At this time the objection to the question is sustained.

[Defense counsel]: How important do you feel the jury recommendation is?

[Prosecutor]: Your Honor, I'm sorry to continue to object, but these questions are improper.

[Court]: The objection is sustained.

\* \* \* \*

[Defense counsel]: Do you -- if someone were found guilty of a homicide, would you always impose the death penalty or not? [Prosecutor]: Your Honor, I am going to object to the form of the question. Not every homicide involves the death penalty.

[Court]: The objection is sustained.

[Defense counsel]: If -- in a homicide case where the death penalty is a potential penalty, do you think it should be applied in all of those cases?

[Prosecutor]: And, Your Honor, I'm sorry, but I must object because the law in the State of Florida is very clear that there is a standard before the jury can even think about imposing the death penalty.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, I object, that's a misstatement of the law. I would ask to approach the bench.

[Court]: All right. Please come forward, Mrs. Reporter, come up here.

(Sidebar discussion with court reporter present.)

[Prosecutor]: Judge, may I --

[Court]: Read the question back, please.

(The question was read back by the court reporter.)

[Prosecutor]: Judge --

[Court]: Your objection?

[Prosecutor]: My objection, Judge, is that -- that the death penalty is reserved for cases where the aggravation outweighs the mitigation. Mrs. Sasser is completely ignoring that standard of the bi[]furcated system in Florida and going straight to do you think all homicides should get the death penalty. And that completely ignores two things, one, that it's reserved for first degree murder, and, two, it's reserved for first degree murders where the State has aggravation that outweighs mitigation.

For example, last week we tried a first degree murder where we waived the death penalty.

And her question is misleading because it ignores those two facts.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, it considers the first fact in asking where it is a potential penalty. I can inquire as to whether or not they would apply the death penalty or feel that it should always be applied.

[Prosecutor]: She has to ask them if they can follow the law regarding aggravation and mitigation.

[Defense counsel]: I need to ask them if they can follow the law. But I can also ask them what their feelings and concerns are about the death penalty and when they would apply [it]. Voir dire is not --

[Court]: I think you are seeking to obtain a commitment from this jury on a premature basis, Counsel. I think a more proper question would be should you be selected on this jury, will you not only follow the Court's instructions on the law and the evidence in rendering a guilty verdict, will you also follow the Court's instructions and the law in the State of Florida on the question of whether or not a death penalty should be imposed as to the life imprisonment sentence.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, that does not ask anything about their feelings and their views about the death penalty. Some people hold the feeling that the death penalty should always be applied and they will not follow -- [Court]: Yeah, irregardless [sic] of whatever your beliefs, will you follow the law.

[Defense counsel]: Your Honor, that question regardless of your beliefs would you follow the law is a question that can be asked but that in no way corroborates the questions -- asking of the other questions.

[Court]: It does, Counsel. I will sustain the objection.

[Defense counsel]: At this time I would move for a mistrial. And I feel that the Court has limited my questioning of these people about the[ir] feelings [concerning] the death penalty and [it deprived my client of his has] constitutional rights under . . . the Florida Constitution, the United States Constitution -- under Article 4 and 14 of the United States Constitution and the due process clauses of the Florida Constitution and move for a mistrial.

[Court]: All right. You wish to be heard on that motion?

[Prosecutor]: No, Your Honor.

[Court]: Is your answer no?

[Prosecutor]: It was no, I apologize.

[Court]: Your motion for mistrial will be denied, Counsel.

(T 291-95, 299-303).

# Issue III

Prior to the testimony of state witness Ismael Lopez, the state orally moved in limine to prohibit defense counsel

from inquiring about the details of the murder with which Lopez was charged "because the details of that crime [were] not relevant to his testimony" (T 838). Defense counsel argued that these details should have been admitted because "the exact same thing that [Lopez] says that my client confessed to is exactly what happened in [Lopez's] case, more or less, in that [Lopez] was a hitchhiker, got picked up and robbed someone." (T 842). The trial court noted the purpose of cross examination, i.e., to expose possible biases, prejudices, and ulterior motives of a witness as they may relate to the issues or personalities in the case at hand, and accordingly held that Lopez could be cross examined about such biases (T 848-49). However, the court ruled that defense counsel could not, under the guise of cross examination, delve into the facts surrounding the murder charge against Lopez (T 849), because such facts were not relevant in this case (T 851). Although defense counsel stated that she would like to make a proffer of the proposed testimony for the record (T 849-51), she never did so.

### Issue IV

When Eaddy took the stand, he related his version of events, stating that, although the victim and a person named Rob or Robert picked him up while he was hitchhiking and took him back to the victim's apartment for a few beers, Eaddy left the apartment within the hour to continue

- 15 -

hitchhiking, leaving the victim and Rob or Robert there Rob or Robert left sometime later, alive (T 972-74). because he picked Eaddy up on Highway 17 and they continued to Brunswick, Georgia (R 974). There, Eaddy pumped some gas in the car; Rob or Robert gave Eaddy a credit card to pay for the gas and told Eaddy to sign because he had cut his hand (T 975). Eaddy signed his name on the receipt but realized that he should have signed the name Rob or Robert told him to sign, i.e., the victim's name (T 975).<sup>1</sup> Thev then continued to Charleston, South Carolina, and went to the house of Eaddy's mother (T 977-78). Eaddy's mother bandaged the cut on Rob or Robert's hand (T 979). Rob or Robert left the next day, and Eaddy never saw him again (T 979).

Defense counsel then asked Eaddy if he had difficulty remembering what happened on "those two days" (T 979). When Eaddy responded affirmatively, defense counsel asked: "As a result of that, did you . . . undergo any kind of hypnotic treatment?" (T 979). Eaddy responded affirmatively, and the state objected on the grounds that hypnosis evidence should not be admitted and that the state had never been made aware that any hypnosis had taken place (T 980). The trial court asked defense counsel for case law supporting

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The trial court struck the statement that Rob or Robert told him to sign the victim's name as hearsay (T 975).

her position, which counsel could not provide (T 980-81), before the court excluded the evidence (T 981).

### Issue V

When Eaddy testified that Rob or Robert told him to place the victim's name on the credit card receipts (T 917-27, 975, 997), the state objected on hearsay grounds (T 975). Defense counsel argued that the statement was not offered to prove the truth of the matter asserted but "merely to show why [Eaddy] did what he did" (T 975).

However, Eaddy's allegation that he signed the victim's name on the Brunswick, Georgia credit card receipt is not supported by the record. Eaddy himself testified that he had started signing his own name on the Brunswick, Georgia credit card receipt when Rob or Robert told him he should Further, the testimony of have signed the victim's name. the handwriting expert indicates that one receipt, numbered 374571, was signed with the victim's name and the other receipt, numbered 814661, was signed "J.E. Eadd" (T 921, 924). Additionally, the prosecutor observed that Eaddy had signed "J.E. Eadd" on the Brunswick, Georgia receipt (T 1104), and did the sentencing court in its written order: "One of these receipts was signed "J.E. Eadd" but that was lined through and the purported signature of Thomas E[dmonds] was then written on the receipt." (R 271).

- 17 -

Finally, Exhibits NN (an enlargement of the credit card receipt signatures) and UU (the actual credit card receipts) show that Eaddy signed "J.E. Eadd" to the receipt numbered 814661.

### Issue VI

Defense counsel filed a motion to dismiss count two of the indictment which charged robbery, claiming that the statute of limitations had run on that offense (T 152). The prosecutor argued:

> We find it ludicrous that a person can kill someone, and then the state be limited solely because we couldn't solve the case, once we do solve it, it's past four years -- four years limitation time for lesser included, and/or the underlying felonies for the case, that the state can't proceed.

> It's simply ridiculous that there is not an exception for capital offenses where a person should be prosecuted not on the underlying felony, it exists, but also for lesser included of murder. And we think that statute 775.15 is ridiculous under these particular circumstances.

> It doesn't accomplish the whole purpose of the statute of limitations to say, well, if this defendant did something back in 1977, you can charge him for part of it but not all of what he did. And that's what this statute is saying. And, it's unconstitutional to the State of Florida in doing that.

> The whole purpose of the statute of limitations is to keep the state from trying to do that with someone.

#### \* \* \* \*

The purpose of the statute of limitation is to keep the government from harassing individuals, stringing cases out, waiting for long periods of time before we even file charges. And then, the defense has a hard time defending against it.

In this particular case, this defendant is going to have to defend against all of the facts and the elements that comprise not only armed robbery, which the state is perfectly able to put on through the felony-murder theory, but also for any lesser included offenses, so the statute really is And it doesn't speak to -- it unfair. doesn't accomplish anything in this particular circumstance.

And the -- I might point out, I know the court was not in on this case from its inception, there was no delay caused by the state in the case.

Briefly, to put the facts on the record, in 1977, Mr. Edmonds was killed, he was stabbed, he was robbed, his car stolen, it was taken to was South Carolina. Two fingerprints were found inside his home. At that time, there were which no suspects to the fingerprints could be compared.

Technology took over in the late Eighties, and we came up with this new computer call[ed] the Athis machine and because of that new technology, the Jacksonville Sheriff's Office was able to solve the crime. And I know the court is familiar with that, I don't need to put that on the record. But the new technology allowed us to solve the crime.

As soon as we knew who the suspect was and probable cause was determined, we issued an arrest warrant for his arrest in late 1989. He was arrested and brought back to Jacksonville in early '90, and we went to the grand jury in early 1990.

And Judge, there's just no way this statute is being served or this defendant's rights are being violated by the state being able to prosecute for the underlying felony and any lesser included.

(T 153-56).

After the trial court granted the motion to dismiss count two, the prosecutor stated:

By Ms. Sasser's motion on behalf of this defendant, she has waived their right to any lesser included offenses for the jury to be instructed, so we just want to make it -- we don't want to have to come back, reargue these motions if they come in trial next week and ask the judge to instruct on lesser included offenses.

(T 159-60). Other than briefly continuing her argument that the trial court could not strike the portion of the indictment dealing with section 775.087, defense counsel remained silent (T 160).

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